
 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
County Commissioners 
 

Agenda Summary 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

Attached is the agenda for the September 10, 2013, meeting of the Davidson County 

Board of Commissioners. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 
 

 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

September 10, 2013, Board of Commissiners Agenda 
 



 

 

NOTE: Anyone with disabilities who needs an accommodation to participate in the meeting should  
Notify the County Manager’s Office at 336-242-2200 at least 24 hours prior to the meeting 

 

AGENDA 
 

DAVIDSON COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

Tuesday, September 10, 2013 
 

7:00 PM 
Commissioners' Meeting Room 
913 Greensboro Street 
Lexington, NC 27292 

 
 
1. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

 
1.a. 

 
Agenda Summary 
 

 
2. 

 
INVOCATION 
 

 
3. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

 
4. 

 
RECOGNITION 
 

 
5. 

 
REGISTER FOR PUBLIC ADDRESS 
 

 
6. 

 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 

 
7. 

 
PUBLIC ADDRESS 
 

 
8. 

 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 

 
8.a. 

 
Public Hearing - Project Soft 
 

 
9. 

 
ITEMS FOR DECISION/INFORMATION - Consent 
 

 
9.a. 

 
Approval of Minutes - August 27, 2013 
 

 
9.b. 

 
Reclassify the Heavy Equipment Maintenance Manager, grade 68 to Lead Landfill 
Mechanic III, grade 66 by Jim Tysinger, Human Resources Director. 
 



Regular Meeting Agenda 

Page 2 

 

 
 
9.c. 

 
School Resource Officer Contract with the Davidson County Board of Education for 
2013/2014 by Zeb Hanner, Assistant County Manager 
 

 
9.d. 

 
Tax Report of Refunds by Joe Silver, Tax Administrator 
 

 
9.e. 

 
Appointments and Re-appointments to the Davidson County Juvenile Crime Prevention 
Council for FY 2013-2014 
 

 
9.f. 

 
Proposed Department of Social Services Job Study by Human Resources 
 

 
9.g. 

 
BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 

 
9.g.1. 

 
Budget Amendment - Cooperative Extension 
 

 
9.g.2. 

 
Budget Amendments by Assistant County Manager 
 

 
10. 

 
ITEMS FOR DECISION/INFORMATION - Deliberation 
 

 
10.a. 

 
Request to Schedule Public Hearing for ROAP Grant Application by Steve Swaim, 
Transportation Manager 
 

 
10.b. 

 
Resolution of Support for Joint Development of Phase One of I-85 Industrial Park  
 

 
11. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 



 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
County Commissioners 
 

Public Hearing - Project Soft 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

The Board will conduct a public hearing for the proposed economic incentive grant 

referred to as Project Soft. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve economic development incentive to Project Soft and authorize execution of 
documents necessary to effectuate the incentive grant payments. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Notice of Hearing - Project Soft 
2. Legal Notice from Dispatch - Project Soft 
3. Proposed Project Soft Economic Incentive Contract 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA          BEFORE THE DAVIDSON COUNTY  
COUNTY OF DAVIDSON                     BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARINGS 
ON ECONOMIC INCENTIVE GRANTS 

 

 Davidson County proposes to appropriate and expend County funds for the 
following economic development project pursuant to North Carolina General Statute § 
158-7.1  The County Board of Commissioners intends to consider entering into an 
economic development incentive grant contract with Project Soft. 
 
 The proposal to be considered is as follows: 
 

Project Soft will be entitled to a grant each year for five (5) years to be paid by 
Davidson County, provided the Company meets the requirements of the contract as to 
investment, jobs and wages.  The grant will begin January of the first full year after the 
first full year of operation following the investment. The calculation for payment of the 
grant will be .0027 times the total investment in plant, machinery and equipment.  The 
grant will not exceed $34,560.00 per year.  The County will fund the payments with 
available revenues in the County’s General Fund or Economic Development Fund.  The 
company plans to invest a minimum of $12,000,000.00 and provide a minimum of 72 
jobs with an average yearly salary of $45,000.00 over the five (5) year period of the 
contract. 

 
 The Board of Commissioners believes the foregoing grant will stimulate the local 
economy, increase the County tax base and revenues, result in the creation of new, 
permanent jobs in the County and promote the welfare of the County and its citizens. 
 
 The Davidson County Board of Commissioners will hold a public hearing on the 
County’s proposed appropriation and expenditure of funds for this grant at 7:00 p.m. on 
Tuesday, September 10, 2013, in the Commissioners Meeting Room located on the 4

th
 

floor of the Davidson County Governmental Center, 913 North Greensboro Street, 
Lexington, North Carolina.  The Commissioners will consider all information that they 
believe to have a bearing on this grant.  The Commissioners invite all interested persons 
to attend and present their views.  The Board may adjourn the hearing from time to time. 
 
 As a result of the public hearing, substantial changes might be made in the 
advertised proposal reflecting objections, debate and discussions at the hearing. 
 
 Persons with disabilities that may need special accommodations to participate in 
the hearings should notify the County Manager’s Office at 336-242-2200 at least 24 
hours prior to the start of the hearing. 
 
 This the 30th day of August, 2013. 
 
     Deborah J. Harris, Deputy Clerk to the Board 
     Davidson County Board of Commissioners 









 1 

 

STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA 

COUNTY OF DAVIDSON 
 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT INCENTIVE CONTRACT 

 
 This Agreement made this the _______  day of ____________ , 2013, by and 

between Davidson County, a body corporate and politic of the State of North Carolina, 

hereinafter "County," and Project Soft, hereinafter “Company.” 
 

WITNESSETH: 

 
WHEREAS, the County has heretofore adopted a policy supporting industrial 

expansion; and  

 
WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §158-7.1 authorizes a County to 

undertake an Economic Development Project by extending assistance to a company in 

order to cause a company to locate or expand its operation within the County; and 
  

 WHEREAS, the County is a body politic and corporate having capacity to 

contract under North Carolina General Statute §153A-11; and 
  
 WHEREAS, Project Soft, a North Carolina corporation, proposes to operate and 

do business in Davidson County, North Carolina, and has capacity to contract; and  
 
WHEREAS, the County has heretofore adopted a policy of supporting industrial 

expansion; and  
 
WHEREAS, the Company made application for economic assistance from the 

County in connection with the costs of relocating and/or constructing a manufacturing 
facility in Davidson County, North Carolina; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company shall invest and maintain, subject to depreciation, a 

minimum of Twelve Million Dollars ($12,000,000.00) in total improvements in plant, 

machinery and equipment; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County wishes to aid and encourage the location of the 

Company in Davidson County, so as to benefit the public by increasing taxable property 

and stimulating and stabilizing the local economy, at a time of increasing economic 
instability and growing unemployment; and 

 
 WHEREAS, as a result of said economic development by the Company, 

Davidson County will realize an increase in ad valorem taxes from said taxpayer; and 

 

 
 

 



 2 

 WHEREAS, after a duly called and noticed public hearing on September 10, 

2013, the Davidson County Board of Commissioners unanimously resolved to 

appropriate and expend County Economic Development Funds to the Company as 
follows: the granting of five (5) annual cash incentive payments to Company equal to 

.0027 times the Company’s investment in the facility, machinery and equipment, not to 

exceed Thirty-Four Thousand Five Hundred Sixty Dollars ($34,560.00) per year; subject 
to the terms and conditions as hereinafter set forth; 

 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises and 

obligations contained herein below, the sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, 

the parties agree as follows:   

 
1. The Company shall locate its facility, machinery and equipment in 

Thomasville, Davidson County, North Carolina.  

 
 2. The Company must invest by December 31, 2015, a minimum of Twelve 

Million Dollars ($12,000,000.00) in capital improvements to its facility, machinery and 

equipment.   Such investment, subject to depreciation, must be maintained during the 
term of this Agreement. 

 

 3.  After completion of the aforementioned new investment in the facility, the 
Company shall certify to the County in writing by one authorized to execute contracts on 

behalf of the Company that the said improvements have been completed.  The 

Company shall include with the certification adequate documentation that the 
improvements have been completed and the amount spent for the improvements.  The 

County’s obligation to begin payment of the grants in accordance with this agreement 

shall not be triggered until such certification and supporting documentation, including 
the Certificate of Occupancy for the facility, has been received by the County.   

 

4. The County will make five (5) annual cash incentive payments to the 
Company equal to .0027 times the Company’s annual value of the new capital 

investment in the facility, machinery and equipment, not to exceed Thirty-Four 

Thousand Five Hundred Sixty ($34,560.00) per year. The five (5) annual cash incentive 
payments as herein described shall be paid on the certification of the jobs created and 

total investment made by the Company.  The Davidson County Tax Assessor shall be 

responsible for determining the annual value of said plant and machinery, and the 
decision as to the annual value by the Tax Assessor shall be binding on all parties.  The 

said five (5) annual cash incentive payments as herein described shall be due and 

payable by the County to the Company as follows:  Beginning January 1st, 2015, and on 
January 1st  for each of the four (4) years thereafter, the Company within thirty (30) days 

shall submit and file with the County supporting documentation of its full compliance 

with the terms and conditions of this Agreement including, without limitation, proof of 
payment of its Davidson County ad valorem taxes, as well as documentation concerning 

employment numbers as hereinafter described.  The five (5) annual cash incentive 

payments shall be due and payable by the County to the Company within thirty (30) 
days after receipt of the supporting documentation.  

 



 3 

5. During the term of this Agreement, the Company must create and 

maintain full-time employment positions with an average yearly salary of Forty-Five 

Thousand Dollars ($45,000.00) upon the following schedule: 
   

Year Jobs Total 

2013 26 

2014 45 

2015 64 

2016 72 

2017 72 

2018 72 

 

  The Company must document employment numbers no later than thirty (30) 
days subsequent to the end of each calendar year.  For the purposes of this Agreement, 

creating and retaining a regular full-time position shall mean creating the position in 

accordance with the existing policies and the procedures of the Company.  A limited 
waiver of the requirement to create and maintain such full-time employment positions 

will exist if the unemployment rate in Davidson County posted by the North Carolina 

Employment Security Commission is in double digits during any one of the six months 
prior to the grant request.  In such event the Company may receive a reduced cash 

incentive payment.  Said cash incentive payment to Company shall be in an amount 

proportionately reduced to reflect the percentage of the actual required employment 
positions created and maintained by the Company in comparison to the required 

number of positions set out in this Agreement. 

 
 6. The Company must remain current regarding all financial obligations to all 

County government entities, and must at all times remain in compliance with all local, 

state and federal laws. 
 

7. The Company agrees that any duly authorized representatives of the 

County shall have access to and the right to inspect, copy, audit, and examine all of the 
books, records, and other documents relating to the fulfillment of this Agreement. 

 

8. The term of this Agreement shall begin on the date hereof, unless sooner 
terminated as herein provided, and shall continue until the date of the last cash 

incentive payment provided herein.   

 
 9. The County reserves the right to require other documentation from the 

Company relating to the Company’s compliance and eligibility requirements under the 

Incentive Grant Program. 
 

10. This Agreement shall bind all successors and assigns of the Company; 

however, neither this Agreement, nor the right to payment under the terms of this 
Agreement may be assigned by the Company, or otherwise used as collateral for any 

obligations of the Company, financial or otherwise, without the express written consent 

of the County.   
 



 4 

11. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of North 

Carolina. 

 
 12. The Company represents and warrants to the County that the Company 

will comply with all applicable local, state and federal laws and regulations in carrying 

out the obligations incurred by the Company under the terms of this Agreement.   
 

13. Any written notice or written certification or payment required by the terms 

of this Agreement shall be deemed given if delivered in person or mailed certified mail, 
return receipt requested to the persons named below:   

 

To Davidson County:   Robert Hyatt, County Manager 
      913 North Greensboro Street 

      Lexington, North Carolina 27292   

        
 

 To Project Soft:    ______________, President 

       ___________________________ 
       ___________________________. 

             

14. This document shall be considered to have been prepared equally by the 
parties hereto and shall not be construed more strictly against either of them.  The 

provisions hereof shall be liberally construed to give effect to their apparent intent.   

 
15. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties hereto and 

may not be modified or canceled except pursuant to the terms hereof or an instrument 

in writing signed by the parties hereto.   
 

16. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts and shall 

become effective when one or more counterparts have been signed by all of the parties; 
each counterpart shall be deemed an original but all counterparts shall constitute a 

single instrument.   

 
17. Any provision herein contained which by its nature and effect is required to 

be observed, kept, or performed after the execution of this Agreement shall survive said 

execution and remain binding upon and for the benefit of the parties unti l fully observed, 
kept, or performed.  Provided however, that all provisions of this Agreement which by 

their terms survive any termination of this Agreement shall survive indefinitely.   

 
18. This Agreement is intended to benefit the parties hereto only, and 

therefore no third party shall have any rights under this Agreement, or be deemed a 

third party beneficiary.   
 

19. This Agreement shall be effective after it has been duly executed by the  

two parties, the effective date being the date above first written.  
 



 5 

      WHEREFORE, the parties have hereunto set their hands and seals, the day and 

year first above written. 

 
 

 

       DAVIDSON COUNTY 
 

      By: _____________________(Seal) 

      Fred D. McClure, Chairman 
      Davidson County  

Board of Commissioners 

ATTEST: (County Seal) 
 

___________________________ 

Deborah J. Harris, Deputy Clerk 
Davidson County Board of Commissioners 

 

 
 

 

 
      PROJECT SOFT    

            

            
      By:___________________(Seal) 

     _______________, President 

ATTEST: (Corporate Seal)   Project Soft 
 

_____________________________  

______________________ 
Secretary 

 

 
 



 6 

NORTH CAROLINA 

DAVIDSON COUNTY 

 
 

 I, Petra D. Leonard, a Notary Public of Davidson County, certify that Deborah J. 

Harris personally appeared before me this day and acknowledged that she is the 
Deputy Clerk to the Davidson County Board of Commissioners, a body corporate and 

politic of the State of North Carolina, and that by authority duly given and as the act of 

Davidson County, the foregoing instrument was signed in its name by the Chairman of 
the Davidson County Board of Commissioners, sealed with its corporate seal, and 

attested by herself as its Clerk to the Board. 

 
Witness my hand and official seal, this the _____ day of ______________, 2013. 

 

 
       _____________________________  

       NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

NORTH CAROLINA 

DAVIDSON COUNTY 
 

 

 I, __________________________, a Notary Public of the County and State 
aforesaid, do hereby certify that _________________ personally appeared before me this 

day and acknowledged that he is Secretary of Project Soft, a North Carolina Company, 

and that by authority duly given and as the act of the Company, the foregoing instrument 
was signed in its name by its President, sealed with its corporate seal, and attested by 

himself as its Secretary. 

 
 Witness my hand and official seal, this the _____ day of _______________, 2013. 

 

 
_____________________________  

       NOTARY PUBLIC 

My Commission Expires: ______________ 
 

 



 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
County Manager 
 

Approval of Minutes - August 27, 2013 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

Minutes of the August 27, 2013, Board of Commissioners meeting are attached for 

your review and consideration. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve Board of Commissioner minutes of August 27, 2013. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

August 27, 2013 Board of Commissioners' Minutes 
 



Page 1 of 5 

 

Minutes of the  
Regular Board of Commissioners Meeting 

Davidson County, North Carolina 
 

Tuesday, August 27, 2013 Commissioners’ Meeting Room 
 7:00 PM  County of Davidson 

 
PRESENT 

 

Commissioners:  Chairman Fred McClure, Vice Chairman Todd Yates, Steve Jarvis, Billy Joe Kepley, 

Larry Potts, Don Truell and Sam Watford. 

 

OTHERS PRESENT   

 

County Manager Robert Hyatt, County Attorney Chuck Frye, Assistant County Manager Zeb Hanner, 

Deputy Clerk to the Board Debbie Harris, Support Services Director Dwayne Childress, Planning and 

Zoning Director Guy Cornman, Finance Director Jane Kiker, IT Director Joel Hartley, Emergency 

Services Director Larry James, DSS Director Dale Moorefield, Public Services Director Rex Buck, 

Human Resources Director Jim Tysinger, Fire Marshal Office Employee Danny Ward, Library Director 

Ruth Ann Copley, 911 Emergency Communications Director Terry Bailey, Council of Chambers 

Representative Larry Link, Health Director Monecia Thomas, David Klein of Santek, Lee Gill, Brian 

Feezor, Barney W. Hill, Lexington Dispatch Reporter Nash Dunn and High Point Enterprise Reporter 

David Nivens. 

 
 
1. 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
Chairman McClure called the meeting to order. 
 
 
1.a. 

 
Agenda Summary 

 
 
2. 

 
INVOCATION 

 
The invocation was led by Commissioner Watford. 
 
 
3. 

 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
 
4. 

 
RECOGNITION 

 
Chairman McClure recognized Larry Link, of Bank of North Carolina, who was present at the meeting 
representing the Council of Chambers. 
 
 
5. 

 
REGISTER FOR PUBLIC ADDRESS 

 
Chairman McClure noted the need to register to speak at Public Address. 
 



Page 2 of 5 

 

 
6. 

 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 
Chairman McClure noted that Commissioner Potts had requested that the matter of Thomasville Sewer 
Spills be added to the deliberation agenda.  County Manager Hyatt requested that a Closed Session be 
added for matters of real estate and economic development.    
 
The amended agenda passed by a vote of 7-0 as follows. 
 
VOTING 

 
Motion by: Larry Potts 
Second by: Don W. Truell 
 
Commissioners YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

McClure, Fred 
Yates, Todd 
Jarvis, Steve 

Kepley, Billy Joe 
Potts, Larry 
Truell, Don W. 

Watford, Sam 

x 
x 
x 

x 
x 
x 

x 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
7. 

 
PUBLIC ADDRESS 

 
Barney W. Hill spoke in opposition to the new agenda package being used by the County. A copy of Mr. 
Hill’s remarks will be included with the approved minutes of this meeting in the minutes book. 
 
 
8. 

 
ITEMS FOR DECISION/INFORMATION - Consent 

 
The Consent Agenda passed by a vote of 6-1 as is set out hereafter. 

 
VOTING 

 
Motion by: Don W. Truell 
Second by: Larry Potts 
 
Commissioners YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

McClure, Fred 

Yates, Todd 
Jarvis, Steve 
Kepley, Billy Joe 

Potts, Larry 
Truell, Don W. 
Watford, Sam 

x 

x 
x 
 

x 
x 
x 

 

 
 
x 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
8.a. 

 
Approval of Minutes 

 
 
 
 

 



Page 3 of 5 

 

 
 
 
8.b. 

 
Minutes - P&Z Public Hearing - June 3, 2013 

 
 
8.c. 

 
Appointment for the DavidsonWorks Workforce Development Board by Pam Walton, 
Interim DavidsonWorks Director 

 
 
8.d. 

 
Pyrotechnics Permit - by Danny Ward, Fire Marshal's Office 

 
 
8.e. 

 
Amendment to Order Granting Special Use Permit, Application No. 2-12-S by Chuck 
Frye, County Attorney 

 
 
8.f. 

 
Addition of Knouse Drive in Arcadia to the NC secondary road system for 
maintenance. 

 
 
8.g. 

 
Proposed lease agreement with Time Warner Business Class by Joel Hartley, CIO 

 
 
8.h. 

 
BUDGET AMENDMENTS 

 
 
8.h.a. 

 
Budget Amendments - Health Department 

 
 
8.h.b. 

 
Budget Amendment - Library  

 
 
8.h.c. 

 
Budget Amendments - Cooperative Extension 

 
 
9. 

 
ITEMS FOR DECISION/INFORMATION - Deliberation 

 
 
9.a. 

 
Bid Award for Construction of Landfill Cell Phase 2-Area 2- Cell 1, by Dwayne 
Childress 

 
Support Services Director Dwayne Childress introduced Pieter Sheer with Smith & Gardner, Engineers, 
who spoke to the Board regarding construction costs and bids submitted for this project.   
 
The Board voted 7-0 to award the construction bid for the Landfill, Phase 2, Area 2, Cell 1, to J.T. 
Russell and Sons, Inc., in the amount of $1,987,483.50. 
 
VOTING 
 
Motion by: Todd Yates 
Second by: Sam Watford 
 
Commissioners YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

McClure, Fred 
Yates, Todd 

x 
x 

 
 

 
 

 
 



Page 4 of 5 

 

Jarvis, Steve 
Kepley, Billy Joe 
Potts, Larry 

Truell, Don W. 
Watford, Sam 

x 
x 
x 

x 
x 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
9.b. 

 
Thomasville Sewer Spills 

 
Commissioner Potts reported that he had been contacted by concerned citizens regarding the County’s 
position on the sewer spills occurring in Thomasville, and that he had requested that the County 
Attorney’s Office research action that could be taken by the County.  County Attorney Chuck Frye 
reported the findings of this research to the Board.  Commissioner Kepley reported that he had also 
been contacted by concerned citizens regarding the problem and the need for Thomasville to act to 
correct the issues.  Commissioner Watford reported that stormwater runoff is what normally triggers 
these spills and most of the recent spills were the result of the inordinate amount of rain received in 
recent months.  Mr. Hyatt reported that he had spoken with Thomasville officials regarding the process at 
the recent Mayor Manager Meeting, and that delays in the regulatory process in obtaining permits had 
been a problem for the City; however, they reported some progress in this area and had also reported 
that they had been able to obtain some financing for projects. 
 
This matter was on for information only. 
 
 
10. 

 
Closed Session - Economic Development 

 
The Board voted to go into Closed Session. 
 
VOTING 

 
Motion by: Larry Potts 
Second by: Steve Jarvis 
 
Commissioners YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

McClure, Fred 

Yates, Todd 
Jarvis, Steve 
Kepley, Billy Joe 

Potts, Larry 
Truell, Don W. 
Watford, Sam 

x 

x 
x 
x 

x 
x 
x 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
County Attorney Frye reported that the Board was going into Closed Session to discuss the property for 
the proposed industrial park. 
 
RETURN TO OPEN SESSION 

 
On a motion by Commissioner Potts and a second by Vice-Chairman Yates the Board voted 7-0 to 
return to Open Session. 
 
On a motion by Commissioner Watford and a second by Commissioner Potts the Board voted 7-0 to 
amend the agenda to add a matter of economic development for consideration. 
 
Economic Development Commission Executive Director Steve Googe requested that the Board conduct 
a public hearing for Project Soft, a manufacturing company, who proposes to invest a minimum of 



Page 5 of 5 

 

$12,000,000.00 in Davidson County and provide 72 jobs within a five year period.  He requested that the 
public hearing be scheduled for Tuesday, September 10, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. 
 
Upon motion of Commissioner Watford and a second by Commissioner Truell the Board voted 7-0 to 
schedule a public hearing for Project Soft on Tuesday, September 10, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. in the 
Commissioners’ Meeting Room. 
 
County Attorney Frye reported that three matters had been discussed in Closed Session, one matter 
regarding real estate with no action being taken and two matters regarding economic development; with 
one being schedule for public hearing and no action being taken on the other. 
 
Commissioner Watford announced that Chairman McClure had been elected as Second Vice President 
to the North Carolina Association of County Commissioners during the Annual Conference the past 
weekend in Greensboro and reported that it was a very prestigious position for a member of the 
Davidson County Board of Commissioners to hold. 
 
 
11. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 

 
The Board voted 7-0 as follows to adjourn. 
 
VOTING 

 
Motion by: Larry Potts 
Second by: Todd Yates 
 
Commissioners YES NO ABSTAIN RECUSE 

McClure, Fred 
Yates, Todd 

Jarvis, Steve 
Kepley, Billy Joe 
Potts, Larry 

Truell, Don W. 
Watford, Sam 

x 
x 

x 
x 
x 

x 
x 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Fred D. McClure 
Chairman, 

Board of Commissioners 

   Deborah J. Harris 
Deputy Clerk to the Board 

 

 
 



 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
Human Resources 
 

Reclassify the Heavy Equipment Maintenance Manager, grade 68 
to Lead Landfill Mechanic III, grade 66 by Jim Tysinger, Human 
Resources Director. 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

Reclassification of the Heavy Equipment Maintenance Manager position is 
recommended for Board consideration. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

It is the recommendation of the Human Resources Director for the Board of County 

Commissioners to approve the reclassification of the Heavy Equipment Maintenance 
Manager position. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Justification for reclassification. 
Job description. 



                    

   
 

          MEMORANDUM 

 
August 15, 2013 

 
To:   Robert Hyatt - County Manager 

          
From: Jim Tysinger - Human Resources Director 
 Elaine Ratcliffe – Human Resources Analyst II 

  
 

Re:   Request to reclassify the Heavy Equipment Maintenance Manager position, grade 68 to Lead 
Landfill Mechanic III, grade 66 with no change in salary.  

 

 
 

Rex Buck, Public Services Executive Director, and Dwayne Childress, Support Services Director, have 
received approval to merge the Heavy Equipment Maintenance Manager position in with the County 
Garage.  As a result of this merge, the Heavy Equipment Maintenance Manager position has changed in 

terms of management responsibility and reporting relationship.   
 

Prior to this merge, the Heavy Equipment Maintenance Manager position managed the landfill garage and 
staff and reported to the ISW department Director.  After this merge, the (proposed) Lead Landfill 
Mechanic III position will act as a supervisor/lead while working at the landfill garage (anticipated about 

70% of the time) and reports to the Fleet Maintenance Manager (job description is attached).   
 

The Fleet Maintenance Manager and the Heavy Equipment Maintenance Manager positions are currently 
both a grade 68.  The Mechanic II, at the Landfill, and the Garage Mechanic II, in the County garage, are 
grade 63.  HR recommends a grade 66 for this (proposed) Lead Landfill Mechanic III position.  This 

adjustment in grade will not result in a salary change for the current Incumbent in the (proposed) Lead 
Landfill Mechanic III position.   

 
We ask that this recommendation, if approved, be effective the first day of the pay-period following 
BOCC approval. 

 
We appreciate your time and consideration.  

 

           DAVIDSON COUNTY 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 Davidson County Governmental Center 
913 Greensboro Street, Suite 403, 4

th
 Floor 

              Lexington, NC  27292   



          
          

    
 

Title:  Lead Landfill Mechanic III    Number:  To be assigned 

Department:  Integrated Solid Waste   Type:  Full-Time w/ Benefits/ Hourly  

Salary Range:  Grade 66  $36,463.96 - $54,695.96   Location:  Lexington  
 
 

General Statement of Duties 

 
Performs complex skilled work maintaining and repairing a variety of automotive and 

light and heavy construction equipment. 
 

Distinguishing Features of the Class 

 
An employee in this class is responsible for preventive maintenance, major and minor 

repairs, vehicle modifications, maintenance documentation and, and assisting in 
managing the garage operations and staff.  Work generally requires the employee to use 
independent judgment and discretion to diagnose problems and decide if the best course 

of action is to repair or replace.  Guides may include flow charts, diagrams, maintenance 
manuals, and technical service bulletins.  Performs more complex maintenance and repair 

work on automotive and/or light and heavy construction equipment, such as forklift, skid-
steer, landfill compactor, bull dozers, front loaders, roll-off trucks and etc. Maintains files 

and records.  Work is performed under general supervision of the Fleet Maintenance 

Manager. 
 

Illustrative Examples of Work 
   

- Performs preventive maintenance and the more complex repairs to vehicles and 

heavy equipment.  
- Must have good computer skills.   

- Manages the flow of work in the shop; schedules maintenance and repairs.  
- Maintains records of vehicle and equipment upkeep and repairs.  
- Assists in supervising the Mechanic II position while at the Landfill.  

- Performs upkeep and maintenance on hydraulic systems. 
- Performs field servicing of vehicles such as tire changes, batteries, or towing. 

- Reviews flow charts, diagrams, and manuals to determine vehicle malfunctions. 
- Makes diagnoses of mechanical malfunctions in vehicles and heavy equipment.  
- Performs shop maintenance such as general clean up. 

- Completes service orders on trucks and equipment. 
- Prepares and maintains documentation for maintenance activities. 

- Maintains inventory of parts and supplies; picks up parts from supplier. 
- Test drives vehicles to ensure proper operation. 
- Adheres to the department’s safety rules and regulations. 

- May be required to be on call.  
- Performs other duties as assigned. 



 
Recruitment and Selection Guidelines 

 
Knowledge, Skills and Abilities 

- Comprehensive knowledge of the methods, tools, and equipment used in the 
repair of automotive and light and heavy construction equipment. 

- General knowledge and skill of personal computer operating systems, and 

applications. 
- Ability to diagnose defects in drive trains, air conditioning systems, electrical, 

hydraulic and other major components of heavy equipment. 
- Comprehensive knowledge and skill in the use and operation of shop tools and 

machinery (Tire changer, jacks, lifts, welding, grinding machines and etc.). 

- Skill in the performance of mechanical maintenance and repair with speed and 
accuracy. 

- Ability to diagnose the more complex defects in automotive and light and heavy 
equipment. 

- Ability to interpret work from sketches, diagrams and installation and repair 

charts. 
- Ability to work safely in all types of situations and hazardous conditions. 

- Ability to understand and follow instructions in both oral and written form. 
- Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with outside 

vendors and other employees. 

 
Physical Requirements 

- Must be able to physically perform basic life operational support functions of 
climbing, balancing, stooping, kneeling, crouching, crawling, reaching, standing, 
walking, pushing, pulling, lifting, fingering, grasping, feeling, talking, hearing 

and repetitive motions. 
- Must be able to perform very heavy work exerting up to 100 pounds of force 

occasionally, and/or in excess of 50 pounds of force frequently, and/or in excess 
of 20 pounds of force constantly to move objects. 

- Must possess visual acuity to perform mechanical or skilled trades tasks, operate a 

computer terminal, perform extensive reading, inspect small defects or parts, 
operation or inspection of machines, use measurement devices and assemble 

fabricate parts at distances close to eyes.   
- Worker is required to have visual acuity to operate machines such as lathes, drill 

presses, power saws and mills where the seeing job is at or within arm’s reach, 

and performs mechanical or skilled trades tasks of a non-repetitive nature such as 
carpenters, technicians, service people, plumbers, painters, mechanics and etc. 

- May be subject to both environmental conditions, extreme heat in excess of 100 
degrees and extreme cold below 32 degrees:  Activities occur inside and outside. 

- May be subject to work with noise and vibration. 

- May be subject to hazards; including a variety of physical conditions, such as 
proximity to moving mechanical parts, electrical current, working on scaffolding 

and high places, exposure to high heat, or exposure to chemicals. 



- May be subject to atmospheric conditions that affect the respiratory system of the 
skin such as fumes, odors, dusts, mists, gases, or poor ventilation. 

- May be subject to oils and other cutting fluids. 
 

Education and Experience 
- Graduation from high school, vocational training in vehicle mechanics and 

considerable experience performing mechanical repairs on diesel and gasoline 

vehicles and heavy equipment in a garage, service station and/or similar work 
environment; or an equivalent combination of education and experience. 

 
Licenses and Certifications 

- Valid North Carolina Commercial Driver License. 

- NCDMV Safety Inspector  
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

August 2013     (((VVVeeerrriiifffiiieeeddd   bbbyyy   DDDwwwaaayyynnneee   CCChhhiiillldddrrreeessssss)))   



 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
County Manager 
 

School Resource Officer Contract with the Davidson County 
Board of Education for 2013/2014 by Zeb Hanner, Assistant 
County Manager 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

Attached for your review and consideration is the School Resource Officer (SRO) 
Contract with the Davidson County Board of Education for the 2013/2014 school 

year. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve execution of contract on behalf of Davidson County. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

SRO Contract for 2013/2014 school year. 
 

















 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
Tax Assessor 
 

Tax Report of Refunds by Joe Silver, Tax Administrator 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

The Tax Report of Refunds for September 2013 is attached for your review and 

approval. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

It is the request of the Tax Department for the agenda item to be approved. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Report on Tax Refunds Information 
 



TOTAL TOTAL

DISTRICT REAL PERSONAL BUSINESS VALUE RATE SUBTOTAL PENALTY REFUND

 0 0 $0 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00

 0 0 $0 0.00000 $0.00 $0.00

TOTAL $0 $0 0 $0  $0.00 0.00 $0.00

    0.00 $0.00

        

    $0.00

         

1.  DOUBLE LISTED 6.  MH DBL LISTED W/REAL 11.  CHANGE IN VALUE

2.  ACREAGE CORRECTION 7.  MH MOVED/VALUE 12.  PREVIOUSLY PAID

3.  HOUSE ON WRONG TRACT 8.  INCORRECT VALUE 13.  BOARD OF E & R

4.  TRANSFER ERROR 9.  INCORRECT FIRE DIST. 14.  BUSINESS NO LONGER IN OPERATION

5.  ELD/DISB. EXEMPTION 10.  CLERICAL ERROR 15.  LANDUSE ADJUSTMENT

$1,923.24TOTAL MOTOR VEHICLES FOR SEPTEMBER

GRAND TOTAL

DAVIDSON COUNTY

SEPTEMBER 2013 REFUNDS

REFUND CODE

REFUND #

REFUND CODE

 

LESS DISCOUNTS

 

 

 



 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
Petra Leonard, Davidson County JCPC Coordinator 
County Manager’s Office 
 

Appointments and re-appointments to the Davidson County 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council for FY 2013-2014 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

The proposed FY 13-14 Davidson County Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) 
membership list is presented for consideration by the Davidson County Board of 

Commissioners. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

It is the recommendation of staff to approve the FY 2013-2014 Davidson County 
Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) proposed membership list. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Cover Memo for JCPC Membership 
Proposed JCPC Membership List and Summary 



DAVIDSON COUNTY 

JUVENILE CRIME PREVENTION COUNCIL 

Po s t Office  Bo x 10 6 7 

Le xin gto n , No rth  Caro lin a  2 72 9 3  

336 -2 4 2 -2 2 0 0  
 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:   Davidson County Board of Commissioners 
 
FROM: Petra Leonard, Davidson County JCPC Coordinator 
 
Date:   September 4, 2013 
 
Re:  FY 13-14 Proposed JCPC Membership 
 
Attached, please find the proposed Juvenile Crime Prevention Council (JCPC) membership list for fiscal year 
2013-2014, which was unanimously approved by the Council on August 25, 2013.  As mandated by North 
Carolina General Statute 143B 544-545, JCPC members serve staggered, two year terms and may be 
reappointed by the Board of Commissioners. 
 
The Council respectfully requests your approval of the following re-appointments to the JCPC, whose terms 
will be effective July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2015: 
 
 Name/Organization      JCPC Specified Membership Position 
 Angie Banther (Director,Path of Hope)    Substance Abuse Professional 
 Scott Bannister (Director, Boys & Girls Club)   Member of the Faith Community 
 Steve Jarvis       County Commissioner 
 Mary Covington (District Court Judge)    Chief District Judge Designee 
 Darren Cecil       Local Health Director Designee 
 Christina Howell (Executive Director, Communities in Schools) Non-profit Agency 
 Tammy Curry (City of Lexington)    Parks and Recreation 
 Jeff Insley (Chief of Thomasville Police)    Commissioner Appointee 
 Jon Michael (Attorney at Law)     Juvenile Defense Attorney 
 Andrea Walker (Baptist Children’s Home)   Commissioner Appointee 
  

The Council respectfully requests your approval of the following new appointments to the JCPC, whose terms 
will be effective July 1, 2013 through June 30, 2015: 

  
 Name/Organization      JCPC Specified Membership Position 
 Justin Freeman (West Davidson Sr. High School)  Student 
  

 
The Council respectfully requests your approval of the following appointments to the JCPC, to fill unexpired 
terms, to expire June 30, 2014: 

  
 Name/Organization      JCPC Specified Membership Position 
 Ed Dawson, (Clinical Psychologist, Engaging Life  Commissioner Appointee 
                      Psychological Services) 

  
Suzanne Storch (Cardinal Innovations)    Local Mental Health Authority Director Designee 



JCPC MEMBERSHIP LIST FY 2013-2014 (**PROPOSED**)          
                                                                                                                                                                   

Specified Members  Name Title Designee Race Gender Term Expires 

1)  School Superintendent or 
designee 

 Rick Kriesky Superintendent-Lexington City Schools  No  White M June 30, 2014 

2)  Chief of Police or designee Mark Sink Major-Lexington Police Department Yes White M June 30, 2014 
3)  Local Sheriff or designee Mitch Kepley Lieutenant  

Davidson County Sheriff’s Department 
Yes White M June 30, 2014 

4)  District Attorney or designee VACANT          June 30, 2014 
5)  Chief Court Counselor or 
designee 

Krista Hiatt Chief Court Counselor-District 22A & 22B No White F June 30, 2014 

6) Director, Piedmont Area Mental   
       Health Authority or designee 

 Suzanne Storch Cardinal Innovations Healthcare Solutions 
Community Relations Specialist  

Yes White F June 30, 2014 

7)  Director DSS or designee Kathy Hitchcock DSS Child Protective Services  
Program Administrator 

Yes White F June 30, 2014 

8)  County manager or designee Robert Hyatt Davidson Co. Manager No White M June 30, 2014 
9)  Substance Abuse Professional Angie Banther Executive Director-Path of Hope No White F June 30, 2015 
10) Member of Faith Community Scott Bannister  Executive Director-Boys & Girls Club No White M June 30, 2015 
11) County Commissioner Steve Jarvis Davidson Co. Commissioner No White M June 30, 2015 
12) Up to 2 persons under age 18 
(State Youth Council Rep if 
available) 

1. Justin Freeman  
 
2.  _______________  

Student-West Davidson Senior High No White M June 30, 2015 
 

June 30, 2015 
13) Juvenile Defense Attorney Jon Michael Attorney at Law No White M June 30, 2015 
14) Chief District Judge or designee Mary Covington District Court Judge Yes White  F June 30, 2015 
15) Member of Business Community Gene Klump CEO 

J. Smith Young YMCA 
No White M June 30, 2014 

16) Local Health Director or 
designee 

Darren Cecil Environmental Health Supervisor 
Davidson County Health Department 

Yes White M June 30, 2015 

17) Rep. United Way/Other Non-
profit 

Christina Howell Executive Director Communities in Schools 
Of Lexington/Davidson County 

No White F June 30, 2015 

18) Representative-Parks & 
Recreation 

Tammy Curry  Program Director 
City of Lexington  Parks & Recreation 

No  Black F June 30, 2015 

19) Co. Commissioner appointee Ed Dawson  Clinical Psychologist 
Engaging Life Psychological Services, PLLC 

No White M June 30, 2014 

20) Co. Commissioner appointee Eric Torrence Career Counselor-Get REAL No  Black M June 30, 2014 
21) Co. Commissioner appointee Fred Mock School Superintendent-Davidson Co. Schools No White M June 30, 2014 
22) Co. Commissioner appointee  Andrea Walker State Intake Coordinator/Foster Care Mgr.-

Baptist Children’s Home 
No White F June 30, 2015 

23) Co. Commissioner appointee Kim Hendrick School Social Worker-Davidson County Schools No White F June 30, 2014 
24) Co. Commissioner appointee  Jeff Insley  Chief-Thomasville Police No   White  M June 30, 2015 
25)  Co. Commissioner appointee Charlesanna  

“Charlie” Hanner 
Retired Thomasville City Schools Educator, 

Thomasville Citizen 
No  White F June 30, 2014 

**N.C.G.A. 143B-543 92002 Session) specifies suggested members be appointed by county commissioners to serve on local Juvenile Crime Prevention Councils.  In 

certain categories, a designee may be appointed to serve.  Please indicate the person appointed to serve in each category and his/her title.   

Indicate appointed members who are designees for named positions.  Indicate race and gender for all appointments.  

 



FY 13-14 
JCPC PROPOSED MEMBERSHIP SUMMARY 

 
 
 
 

Current Members Renewing Terms (to expire June 2015): 
Angie Banther 
Scott Bannister 
Commissioner Steve Jarvis 
Judge Mary Covington 
Darren Cecil 
Christina Howell 
Tammy Curry 
Andrea Walker 
Chief Jeff Insley 
Jon Michael 
 
 
New Members (terms to expire June 2015) 
Justin Freeman 
 
 
Filling Unexpired Terms 
 
Suzanne Storch with Cardinal Innovations—Replacing Ted Ayers.  Serving as designee for “Director, Local 
Mental Health Entity”.  Term expires June 2014 
 
Kim Hendrick—Social Worker with Davidson County Schools—replacing Frankie Hedrick as “Commissioner 
appointee”.  Term expires June 2014 
 
 



 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
Human Resources 
 

Proposed Department of Social Services Job Study by Human 
Resources 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

The proposed DSS Departmental Job Study is presented for Board consideration. 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

It is the recommendation of Human Resources and the DSS Board to approve the 
proposed DSS Departmental Job Study. 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

Cover Letter of Justification to the Board 
Management and Administrative 
Office Support 
Social Work Division 
Child Support Division 
Income Maintenance Division 
Closing Positions 
DSS Allocation Chart 



                    

   
 

          MEMORANDUM 

 
August 30, 2013 

 
To:   Robert Hyatt - County Manager 

          
From: Jim Tysinger - Human Resources Director 
 Elaine Ratcliffe – Human Resources Analyst II 

  
Re:   Request from Jim Tysinger and Elaine Ratcliffe to adopt the following  

            recommendations based on the job-study conducted of all positions in the  
Social Services Department.   

 

 
Elaine Ratcliffe recently completed a thorough review and analysis of all the positions in the Social 

Services department which was presented to and has been approved by the DSS Board.  This formal 
study is in keeping with the desire of the Davidson County Board of Commissioners to conduct job 
studies of all County positions, with the goal to review approximately one-third of all positions and 

classifications each year.   
 

This job study has been an interesting one.  First of all in terms of figuring out how the positions are 
classified.  With the Social Services positions being “governed” under the Office of State Personnel, 
the way positions are classified may depend on the size of the Social Services Program.  According 

to Ken Litowsky, HR Consultant with the Office of State Personnel, Davidson County’s Social 
Services department is considered to be a “large” program.   For example, the Income Maintenance 

Administrator I class specification from Office of State Personnel (NC 09921, OSP 2/88), states that  
“Employees in this class are responsible for the administrative and technical management of the 
income maintenance programs for a medium to large County Department of Social Services.”  Also, 

because Ms. Ratcliffe had to correspond with the Office of State Personnel a tremendous amount of 
time, the time to complete this job study was extended considerably.   

 
Based on survey data, most of the positions, in this study, were found to be graded appropriately.  
When looking at jobs that fall under the Office of State Personnel (Health and DSS) you are 

required to consider the grade relationship of positions that are in the same class (see below).  If the 
majority of positions within an Office of State Personnel job class are graded appropriately, and one 

is not, for example, then the one will have to remain at its current grade.  If one grade is changed 
within a job class, grades for the remaining positions must also be changed to maintain the grade 

           DAVIDSON COUNTY 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 
 Davidson County Governmental Center 
913 Greensboro Street, Suite 403, 4

th
 Floor 

              Lexington, NC  27292   



relationship with Office of State Personnel.   This type of bureaucratic process causes the review to 
be much more difficult than non-OSP departments. 

 
There are a number of positions/authorizations being recommended for closure.  Although most of 

these positions are not budgeted positions, the elimination of them will “clean up” Davidson 
County’s payroll system.  This has been a customary recommendation with all job studies 
conducted to date.   

 
During this study, it was determined that DSS needs an additional Income Maintenance Investigator 

II position for the following reasons:  (1) There exists a backlog of fraud cases that have not been 
investigated or collected on because the current employee’s workload doesn’t permit.  (2) There is a 
six-year statute of limitation on fraud cases and the longer the cases go uninvestigated the harder it 

is to prove fraudulence.  (3) There are currently 84 pending Medicaid referrals regarding potential 
fraud.  Investigations include home visits and retail store visits which take up a tremendous amount 

of time.  Last year there were 77 intentional Program Violations for Food and Nutrition Services, 
alone.  This year, there have been 114.  (4) Currently we have 84 Medicaid Fraud referrals and 41 
pending for a disqualification from the FNS program with 26 of them pending an Administrative 

Disqualification Hearing. In one major case, we have at least 400 or more FNS cases pending an 
Administrative Disqualification Hearing due to EBT Fraud involving the B&J Mart in Thomasville. 

The Investigator has completed 102 of these cases so far with an established dollar amount collected 
of $213,938.62.  (5) Davidson County, on average, is able to keep about 30% of the funds collected 
from fraudulent cases.  6) Also, for informational purposes, the current IM Investigator II is 

currently occupied with an employee who has been with Davidson County for 28 years, and plans to 
retire within the next few years.  This employee is extremely knowledgeable in all areas of fraud.  

So much so, that the State gives her name to other Counties so they can contact her with questions.  
In order to prevent losing an extreme amount of knowledge and expertise in investigating and 
collecting Public Assistance used fraudulently, a second position will allow the development of a 

qualified successor.   
 

Following is a summary of the 253 positions studied, reclassifications and the overall impact on the 
budget for the Social Services department.  This summary includes updated numbers that reflect the 
1.5% COLA given with the 2013-2014 fiscal budget.  The numbers in the “body” of this job study, 

however, reflect those numbers that were used to conduct the study.  
    

- 204 full-time positions were reviewed 
- 0 part-time positions were reviewed 
- 49 temporary positions were reviewed 

- 253 positions include:   
- 7 full-time positions with upgrades and salary increases. 

- 4 positions downgraded. 
- 5 salary increases with no change in title or grade. 
- 0 upgrades with no change in salary. 

- 1 title change with no change in grade. 
- 172 positions no change in title, grade or salary. 

- 50 positions/authorizations closed. 
 



Approximate Impact on the Social Services departmental Budget, per Lynn Meeks (DSS) 

 

                                      Cost difference 

                         with 1.5% COLA   

 
- Salary increases for 12 of 204 full-time positions (5.8% of 204 positions)-------- $27,462.10  
- Cost increase for benefits due to study (per DSS budget) ----------------------------$  4,654.96 

Budgetary Impact of Job Study                            $32,117.06  
   

- Salary cost to add 1 f/t IM Investigator II authorization  ------------------------- $33,101.08 
- Cost increase  for benefits for the added position (per DSS budget)----------------  $13,053.00      
Budgetary Impact of requested position                     $46,154.08  

 
Total draw-down (reimbursement) from the Fed Gov’t (per DSS budget)----------($41,603.22) 

 
Total Budgetary Impact with requested position (per DSS budget)                    $36,667.92 

 

 
We, Jim Tysinger (HR Director), Elaine Ratcliffe (HR Analyst II) along with Dale Moorefield, 

County Social Services Director ask that this proposal be considered and accepted by the Board of 
County Commissioners.  The DSS Board recommended, with approval, Tuesday, August 27th, 
2013, that the Davidson County Board of County Commissioners consider and approve this DSS 

Job Study.   
 

A list of all positions reviewed, including the proposed reclassifications for the Social Services 
department, is included with the packet of information you’ve been provided.  If approved, the 
effective date for these recommendations will be the first day of the pay-period following BOCC 

approval.   
 

Thank you for your time and consideration.  
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



As a result of the Social Services departmental job study, Jim Tysinger and Elaine Ratcliffe make 
the following recommendations: 

 

 

Social Services Department 

Summarized List of Recommendations 
for Department # 23 

 
 

 
- 1 (one) County Social Services Director, grade 80.  No change in title, grade or salary. 
- 1 (one) Interim County Social Services Director, grade 80.  No change in title or grade. 

- 1 (one) Human Service Deputy Director, grade 76. No change in title or grade, with a 
2.5% salary increase from $62,905.65 to $64,478.29 ($1,572.64). 

- 1 (one) Accounting Specialist II, grade 69.  No change in title, grade or salary.  
- 2 (two) Computing Support Tech III, grade 66.  No change in title, grade or salary. 
- 1 (one) Accounting Tech II, grade 63.  No change in title, grade or salary. 

- 1 (one) Accounting Tech II - temp, grade 63.  Close this position. 
- 1 (one) Foreign Language Interpreter, grade 62.  No change in title, grade or salary.  

- 1 (one) Human Resources Placement Specialist, grade 62.  Close position.  
- 1 (one) Office Support V, grade 61.  Title change to Office Work Unit Supervisor V, 

with no change in grade or salary. 

- 4 (four) Office Support IV, grade 59.  (Authorizations # 2, 4 and 6, and #7), no change in 
title, grade or salary.  

- 2 (two) Office Support IV, grade 59.  (Authorization # 3 and 5), title change to 
Accounting Tech I, grade 61 with salary increases to the minimum of the pay grade 
(amount varies). 

- 1 (one) Office Support IV – temp, grade 59.  Close authorization #1 only. 
- 14 (fourteen) Office Support III, grade 57.  No change in title, grade or salary for 

authorizations # 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15 and 17.   
- 1 (one) Office Support III, grade 57.  (Authorization #3), reclassify this authorization to 

Office Support II, grade 55 with no change in salary.   

- 4 (four) Office Support III – temp, grade 57.  Authorizations # 1, 2, 3 and 4.  No change 
in title, grade or salary. 

- 3 (three) Office Support III - temp, grade 57.  Close authorizations # 5, 6 and 7. 
- 3 (three) Office Support II – temp, grade 54.  Close authorizations # 1, 2 and 3. 
- 1 (one) Chore Provider - temp, grade 51.  Close position.  

- 2 (two) Social Work Program Administrator I, grade 74.  No change in title, grade or 
salary.   

- 8 (eight) Social Work Supervisor III, grade 72.  No change in title, grade or salary.   
- 1 (one) Social Work Supervisor III - temp, grade 72.  Close position.  
- 1 (one) Interim Social Work Supervisor III, grade 72.  Authorization # 2.  No change in 

title, grade or salary.   
- 1 (one) Interim Social Work Supervisor III, grade 72.  Authorization # 3.  Close this 

authorization.  



- 1 (one) Social Work Supervisor II, grade 69.  (Authorization # 1), reclassify to Income 
Maintenance Supervisor II, grade 66, with no change in salary.   

- 1 (one) Social Work Supervisor II, grade 69.  (Authorization # 3), no change in title, 
grade or salary. 

- 23 (twenty-three) Social Work Investigative/Assessment & Treatment, grade 69.  No 
change in title, grade or salary.  

- 1 (one) Social Work Investigative/Assessment & Treatment - temp, grade 69.  No 

change in title, grade or salary for authorization #1. 
-  1 (one) Social Work Investigative/Assessment & Treatment - temp, grade 69.  Close 

authorization #2.   
- 18 (eighteen) Social Worker III, grade 68.  (Authorization # 2, 10, 11, 13, 15, 16, 19, 22, 

24, 25, 26, 28, 35, 38, 39, 40, 41 and 43), no change in title, grade or salary.  

- 5 (five) Social Worker III, grade 68.  (Authorization # 29, 30, 32, 42 and 44), close these 
authorizations.  

- 1 (one) Social Worker III, grade 68.  (Authorization # 8), reclassify to Income 
Maintenance Investigator II, grade 64.  Position is currently vacant.  

- 1 (one) Social Worker III - temp, grade 68.  Close this position. 

- 2 (two) Social Worker II, grade 66.  (Authorization # 14 and 15), close these 
authorizations.  

- 5 (five) Social Worker II, grade 66.  (Authorization # 2, 3, 12, 13, 16), no change in title, 
grade or salary.   

- 1 (one) Social Worker II, grade 66.  (Authorization # 4), reclassify this authorization to 

SW I, grade 62, with no change in salary. 
- 2 (two) Social Worker II - temp, grade 66.  (Authorization # 1 only), close this 

authorization.  
- 2 (two) Social Worker II – Foster Care - temp, grade 66.  (Authorization # 1 and 2), 

close these authorizations.   

- 1 (one) Social Worker I - temp, grade 62.  Close position. 
- 2 (two) Social Work Trainee - temp, grade 61.  Close position.  

- 2 (two) Community Employment Case Manager, grade 64.  (Authorization # 1 and 5), 
no change in title, grade or salary. 

- 3 (three) Community Employment Case Manager, grade 64.  (Authorization # 2, 4 and 

6), no change in title, grade or salary. 
- 1 (one) Community Employment Case Manager, grade 64.  (Authorization # 3), close 

this authorization. 
- 3 (three) Community Social Service Assistant, grade 55.  (Authorization # 2, 4 and 5), 

reclassify to Community Social Service Tech, grade 59, with salary increases (amounts 

vary). 
- 1 (one) Community Social Service Assistant, grade 55.  (Authorization # 3), no change 

in title, grade or salary.  
- 1 (one) Community Social Service Assistant - temp, grade 55.  Close position.  
- 1 (one) Day Care Coordinator, grade 67.  No change in title, grade or salary.  

- 2 (two) Social Work Supervisor II (Facts Grant), grade 69.  (Div # 2, Authorization # 1 
and 2), close these authorizations.   

- 1 (one) Social Worker II (Facts Grant), grade 66.  (Div # 2, Authorization #1), close this 
authorization. 



- 2 (two) Child Support Supervisor II, grade 67. No change in title or grade with a 2.5% 
salary increase (amounts vary).  

- 1 (one) Quality Assurance Specialist I, grade 67.  No change in title or grade with a 3% 
salary increase from $38,299.66 to $39,448.65 ($1,148.99).  

- 2 (two) Lead Child Support Agent, grade 65.  No change in title, grade or salary. 
- 12 (twelve) Child Support Agent II, grade 64.  No change in title, grade or salary.  
- 1 (one) Child Support Agent II - temp, grade 64.  Close this position.  

- 1 (one) Child Support Agent I, grade 62.  No change in title, grade or salary.  
- 2 (two) Office Support IV, grade 59.  (Authorization # 1 and 8), reclassify to Child 

Support Agent I, grade 62 with salary increases to the minimum of the new pay grade.   
- 1 (one) Income Maintenance Program Administrator I, grade 71.  No change in title or 

grade with a 2.5% salary increase from $49,200.74 to $50,430.76 ($1,230.02). 

- 6 (six) Income Maintenance Supervisor II, grade 66.  No change in title, grade or salary. 
- 11 (eleven) Income Maintenance Caseworker III, grade 64.  No change in title, grade or 

salary. 
- 1 (one) Income Maintenance Caseworker III - temp, grade 64. Close position. 
- 1 (one) Income Maintenance Investigator II, grade 64.  No change in title, grade or 

salary. 
- 43 (forty-three) Income Maintenance Caseworker II, grade 62.  No change in title, grade 

or salary. 
- 2 (two) Income Maintenance Caseworker II - temp, grade 62.  (Authorization # 1 and 4) 

close these authorizations. 

- 4 (four) Income Maintenance Caseworker II - temp, grade 62.  (Authorization # 2, 3, 5 
and 6), no change in title, grade or salary. 

- 2 (two) Income Maintenance Caseworker I - temp, grade 60.  Close position.    
- 8 (eight) Income Maintenance Caseworker I work/against Income Maintenance 

Caseworker II, grade 60.  No change in title, grade or salary.  

- 1 (one) Income Maintenance Caseworker I work/against Income Maintenance 
Caseworker II - temp, grade 60.  Close this position.  

- 1 (one) Income Maintenance Technician – temp, grade 58.  No change in title, grade or 
salary.  

 



(Social Services Department) 

Director & Deputy Director 

 
 
This DSS Job Study was completed prior to the 1.5% COLA approved by the BOCC for fiscal year 2013/2014.  

Therefore, the numbers reflected below are prior to the 1.5% COLA. 

 

 
1. County Social Services Director, grade 80, $71,006.14 to $106,509.22 – The current actual salary 

for Davidson County’s Social Services Director was just increased in February to $88,875.00 from 
$87,857.74.  The grade, 80, is appropriate with the Local Health Director position in the same 
grade.  The average actual salary for comparable Counties is $98,342.  However, with the recent 

salary increase HR does not recommend another increase.   
 

2. Interim County DSS Director, grade 80, $71,006.14 to $106,509.22 – Although this position has 
only been used when the Director position has been vacant (2010), we recommend maintaining 
this interim position for future need. 

 
3. Human Services Deputy Director, grade 76, $58,468.03 to $87,702.61 – When Ms. Ratcliffe, HR 

Analyst II, surveyed comparable and competitive Counties to learn what the average salary for this 
position would be, most Counties did not have a comparable position to this one.  Catawba 
County, the only comparable County that responded as having this position, has an Assistant 

Social Services Director with an actual salary of $93,240, which is considerably higher than 
Davidson County.  While Forsyth, typically having higher averages than Davidson County, their 
actual salary is $69,660.  Even Guilford County is less than Catawba with an actual salary of 

$82,929.   
 

Within the study, it was learned that this position no longer supervises Income Maintenance in the 
Thomasville DSS; however, it still supervises the SW Program Administrator I position which is a 
higher grade (grade 74) than that of the IM Program Administrator I (grade 71).  Also, during the 

study process, this position passed the responsibility of WFFA, Child Care and Emergency 
Assistance to the IM Program Administrator I.  In return, this position gained the responsibility of 

the Child Support division in both Lexington and Thomasville.  
 

Davidson County’s Human Services Deputy Director’s actual salary is $61,976.  HR does not 

recommend a change in grade; however, in order to get this Incumbent’s salary closer to the 
comparable/competitive salaries, HR recommends a conservative 2.5% ($1,549.40 increase) from 

$61,976.10 to $63,525.50.   
 
HR would prefer the title Social Services Assistant Director for this position; however, OSP 

(Office of State Personnel) does not have this title available for use.  
 



(Social Services Department) 

Office, Accounting & Miscellaneous Staff 

  
 
This DSS Job Study was completed prior to the 1.5% COLA approved by the BOCC for fiscal year 2013/2014.  

Therefore, the numbers reflected below are prior to the 1.5% COLA. 

 

 
1. Accounting Specialist II, grade 69, $41,590.37 to $62,386.68 – No change to this position.  The 

salary and grade for this position are appropriate based on survey data and position analysis.   
 
2. Computing Support Tech III, grade 66, $35,925.09 to $53,887.65 – No change to this position. 

 
3. Computing Support Tech III, grade 66, $35,925.09 to $53,887.65 – (1/2 time employee, shared 

with EMS)   No change to this position. 
 

4. Accounting Tech II, grade 63, $31,102.74 to $46,653.55 – This position’s duties and 

responsibilities were questionable regarding it being classified as an Accounting Tech II vs. an 
Office Support classification.  In conference with Dominick D’Erasmo, Office of State Personnel 

HR Consultant, it was confirmed that the position should be classified as Accounting Tech II.  
Therefore, HR does not recommend a change to this position. 

 

5. Accounting Tech II, temp, grade 63, $31,102.74 to $46,653.55 – This position has been vacant 
since 2004; therefore, HR recommends closing this position. 

 

6. Foreign Language Interpreter, grade 62, $29,656.60 to $44,484.91 – No change to this 
authorization.  The position is classified appropriately and the salary is in line with 

comparable/competitive Counties. 
 

7. Human Resources Placement Specialist, grade 62, $29,656.60 to $44,484.91 – Close position.  

Vacant since 2007. 
 

8. Office Support V, grade 61, $28,209.33 to $42,314.00 – This position is very similar in duties and 
responsibilities to those of the Office Work Unit Supervisor V position in the health department.  
HR recommends a title change to Office Work Unit Supervisor V with no change in grade or 

salary.  The salaries of the two positions in the health department are approximately $29,500.  This 
Incumbent’s salary is $32,722.98. 

 
9. Office Support IV, grade 59, $25,556.75 to $38,335.70: 

 

a. See Child Support Division for the following authorizations:  1 and 8. 
 

b. Auth #2 – This authorization provides leadership to the Office Support III in the   
Thomasville DSS Office as-well-as taking tax payments which is similar to the 
Collections Assistant I position in the Tax office (grade 59).  Since this 

authorization is a grade 59, HR does not recommend a change to this 
authorization. 

 
 



 
c. Auth #3 – This position performs bookkeeping and beginning level accounting.  Therefore,  

     HR recommends a reclassification to Accounting Tech I, grade 61 with a salary     
     increase to the minimum of the pay grade in accordance with the Personnel  

     Resolution (from $26,835.12 to $28,209.33) $1,374.21 increase.  Position     
     already exists in payroll. 

d. Auth #4 – This position provides leadership to other office support staff.  Most of the  

position’s duties appear to be Office Support III level; however, with the 
leadership duties and responsibilities HR does not recommend a change to this 

authorization. 
e. Auth #5 – This position performs bookkeeping and beginning level accounting.  Therefore,  

     HR recommends a reclassification to Accounting Tech I, grade 61 with a salary     

     increase to the minimum of the pay grade in accordance with the Personnel  
     Resolution (from $25,556.75 to $28,209.33) $2,652.58 increase.  Position  

     already exists in payroll. 
f. Auth #6 – This position provides leadership to other office support staff; however, the  

leadership duties do not warrant an OS V level.  The non-leadership duties are  

clearly Office Support IV level.  HR does not recommend a change to this  
authorization. 

g. Auth #7 – At the request of Mr. Moorefield, we will maintain this authorization.  Vacant  
          since 2010. 
 

10. Office Support IV, temp, grade 59, $25,556.75 to $38,335.70:  
 

a. Close authorization #1 only.  Vacant since 2004. 
 

11. Office Support III, grade 57, $23,146.15 to $34,719.79: 

 
a.  No change to the following authorizations: 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 17. 

b. Auth #3 – HR recommends a reclassification to Office Support II, grade 54.  The majority   
of this authorization is switchboard.  The previous Incumbent retired from this 
position on April 1st, 2013; however, the position will be filled and will continue 

to operate the switchboard.  Therefore, HR continues to recommend a 
reclassification to Office Support II, grade 54, for this authorization.  The Office 

Support II position already exists in payroll. 
c. Auth #12 – Mr. Moorefield would like to maintain this authorization.  Vacant since 2006. 

 

12. Office Support III, temp, grade 57, $23,146.15 to $34,719.79:  
 

a. Although the following authorizations have been vacant for at least 6 years, HR 
recommends leaving them available to use temporarily for data entry with the new NC Fast 
software transition: #1, 2, 3 and 4.  

b. The following authorizations have been vacant at least 6 years; therefore HR recommends 
closure: #5, 6 and 7.   

 
13. Office Support II, temp, grade 51, $17,238.90 to $25,858.36:  
 

a. Close the following authorizations that have been vacant at least 8 years: 1, 2 and 3. 
 



14. Chore Provider, temp, grade 51, $17,238.90 to $25,858.36 – Close position.  Position has been 
vacant at least 12 years. 

 



(Social Services Department) 

Social Work Division 

 
 
This DSS Job Study was completed prior to the 1.5% COLA approved by the BOCC for fiscal year 2013/2014.  

Therefore, the numbers reflected below are prior to the 1.5% COLA. 

 

 
1. Social Work Program Administrator I, grade 74, $53,043.60 to $79,564.83 – No change to this 

position.  Survey data for comparable Counties (minimum salary $54,334) showed that this 
position is appropriately graded based on the minimum salary of grade 74 ($53,043.60).  Both of 
the Incumbents, in this position, are compensated fairly, based on survey data.  One of the 

Incumbents in this position was recently promoted to the Social Work Program Administrator I 
position but is compensated generously ($59,157) compared to the Incumbent that has been in the 

position since 2005 ($63,575).  HR does not recommend a change to either salary since the 
average actual salary for comparable Counties is $69,788. 

 

2. Social Work Supervisor III, grade 72, $48,100.82 to $72,150.67 – No change to this position or 
authorizations.  The salary and grade are appropriate for this position, based on survey data and 

position analysis. 
 

3. Social Work Supervisor III, temp, grade 72, $48,100.82 to $72,150.67 – Close position.  This 

position has been vacant since 2004. 
 

4. Interim Social Work Supervisor III, grade 72, $48,100.82 to $72,150.67 – Maintain one 

authorization (#2), at the request of Mr. Moorefield.   
 

5. Social Work Supervisor II, grade 69, $41,590.37 to $62,386.68 – (Authorization #1 only) In 
comparing the Office of State Personnel Class Specs to the duties and responsibilities preformed 
by this authorization, it appears that the appropriate classification is an Income Maintenance 

Supervisor II, grade 66.  The position only supervises one Social Work authorization.  The 
majority 99% of the time is spent in Income Maintenance; therefore, the position needs to be 

classified as Income Maintenance Supervisor II.   
 

a. No change to authorization #3. 

 
6. Social Work Investigative/Assessment & Treatment, grade 69, $41,590.37 to $62,386.68: 

 
a. No change to the following authorizations:  1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 16, 

17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 22, 23 and 24. 

 
7. Social Work Investigative/Assessment & Treatment, temp, grade 69, $41,590.37 to $62,386.68 – 

This position has been vacant since 2007; maintain one authorization (#1), at the request of Mr. 
Moorefield, and close the other authorization (#2).   

 

8. Social Worker III, grade 68, $39,661.42 to $59,493.27:  
 



a. No change to the following authorizations:  2, 10, 11, 13, 15, 16, 19, 22, 24, 25, 26, 28, 35, 
38, 39, 40, 41 and 43.  This position is appropriately graded relative to survey data and the 

Office of State Personnel Class Specs.  
 

b. The following authorizations have been vacant for at least 7 years; therefore, HR 
recommends closure of these authorizations:  29, 30, 32, 42 and 44.   

 

c. Reclassify authorization # 8 to Income Maintenance Investigator II, grade 64.  The 
following statistics show the need for an additional Income Maintenance Investigator II 

authorization.  We have also included a chart comparison from other Counties for the Food 
& Nutrition Services program (attached):  

 

i. Currently, Davidson County has one Income Maintenance Investigator II to 
investigate fraud for all of the Public Assistance programs (Medicaid, NC Health 

Choice, Food & Nutrition Services, Work First, Special Assistance and Child Care) 
which totals 36,866 cases. 

ii. In the last two years, the total number of fraud claims that were established 

increased from 539 to 637 with a total in monetary collections increasing from 
$348,694.64 to $433,796.90. 

iii. Although the current Income Maintenance Investigator II is doing a great job and 
ranked #5 in the State for her volume of collections, there is still a backlog of fraud 
cases un-investigated because the current Investigator cannot get to them all due to 

the current volume they are handling and time constraints.  Many of the fraud cases 
require home visits or visits to retail establishments where benefits were used 

fraudulently.   
iv. The current Income Maintenance Investigator has been with Davidson County for 

28 years and plans on retiring within the next few years.  In order to be prepared for 

this Incumbent’s retirement, Davidson County needs a second Income Maintenance 
Investigator to cross-train during these next few years. 

v. Fraudulent use of Social Services benefits is on the increase.  In 2012 there were 77 
intentional program violations.  This year we have had 84 Medicaid fraud referrals 
and 41 Food & Nutrition Services fraud referrals.      

vi. A second Investigator would afford more home and retail visits, educating staff in 
how to identify signs of fraud and investigating more Day Care and Work First 

fraudulent cases.  DSS projects that this would increase the number of claims 
established by 50% or more and collections would increase by 25% to 40% in the 
first year.  

 
9. Social Worker III, temp, grade 68, $39,661.42 to $59,493.27: 

 
a. Close the following authorizations:  2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9.  These authorizations have 

been vacant for at least 8 years.  

 
10. Social Worker II, grade 66, $35,925.09 to $53,887.65:  The salary and grade are appropriate for 

this position, based on survey data and position analysis. 
 

a. No change to the following authorizations:  2, 3, 12, 13 and 16.   

 
b. Close the following authorizations:  14 and 15.  Vacant for at least 9 years. 



 
c. Authorization #4 – This authorization reads more like a SW I than it does a SW II.  The 

only duty that warrants a SW II classification is the “home studies” conducted.  In 
conversation with this Incumbent’s supervisor, there was only 1 home study conducted in 

the last year, and as indicated on the Position Description Questionnaire, only 5% of the 
time is spent performing home studies.   

 

Also in conversation with this Incumbent’s supervisor and the Agency Director, Mr. 
Moorefield, it was requested that this authorization be reclassified to an Income 

Maintenance position; however, in looking at the programs and functions of an Income 
Maintenance Caseworker, this authorization is clearly not an Income Maintenance 
position.  In conversation with Dominick D’Erasmo, HR Consultant with the Office of 

State Personnel, he agrees that the majority of this position’s duties and responsibilities are 
SW I.  Therefore, HR recommends a reclassification, of this authorization, to SW I, grade 

62.  This will not affect the current Incumbent’s salary.   
 

11. Social Worker II, temp, grade 66, $35,925.09 to $53,887.65 – Close authorizations #1 and 2.  

These authorizations have been vacant for at least 7 years. 
 

12. Social Worker II -Foster Care, temp, grade 66, $35,925.09 to $53,887.65 – This position has been 
vacant for at least 5 years; therefore, HR recommends closure. 

 

13. Social Worker I, temp, grade 62, $29,656.60 to $44,484.91 – Close position.  This position has 
been vacant since 2005. 

 
14. Social Work Trainee, temp, grade 61, $28,209.33 to $42,314.00 – Close position.  Auth #1 has 

been vacant since 2001 and Auth #2 has been vacant since 1999. 

 
15.  Community Employment Case Manager, grade 64, $32,611.91 to $49,004.52 – The grade for this 

position is appropriate, but the actual salary is questionable.  Comparable Counties average actual 
salary, for this position, is $38,087 which is about $5,000 more than Davidson County’s average 
actual.    

 
a. Authorization #1 – In conversation with this Incumbent’s supervisor and the Agency 

Director, Mr. Moorefield, is was requested that this authorization be reclassified to an 
Income Maintenance position; however, in looking at the programs and functions of an 
Income Maintenance Caseworker, this authorization is clearly not an Income Maintenance 

position.  In conversation with Dominick D’Erasmo, HR Consultant with The Office of 
State Personnel, he interprets the duties and responsibilities of this position to be a CECM.  

Therefore, HR recommends no change to this authorization. 
 
b. Authorization #2 – No change to this authorization. 

 
c. Authorization #3 –Close this authorization per Mr. Moorefield. 

 
d. Authorization #4 – Although this authorization has been vacant since 2004, Mr. 

Moorefield would like to maintain this authorization in case of future need. 

 



e. Authorization #5 - In conversation with this Incumbent’s supervisor and the Agency 
Director, Mr. Moorefield, is was requested that this authorization be reclassified to an 

Income Maintenance position; however, in looking at the programs and functions of an 
Income Maintenance Caseworker, this authorization is clearly not an Income Maintenance 

position.  In conversation with Dominick D’Erasmo, HR Consultant with The Office of 
State Personnel, he interprets the duties and responsibilities of this position to be a CECM.  
Therefore, HR recommends no change to this authorization.   

 
f. Authorization #6 – No change to this authorization. 

 
16.  Community Social Service Assistant, grade 55, $20,976.37 to $31,464.00 –  

 

a. Authorization #2 – This authorization’s duties and responsibilities are much more complex 
than those of authorization #3’s.  This Incumbent is responsible for observing and 

evaluating parent’s interaction and conduct with their child(ren).  The Incumbent is 
required to make recommendations and decisions on the spot with total independence.  In 
discussion with Dominick D’Erasmo, HR Consultant with the Office of State Personnel, it 

was determined that the Community Social Services Technician, grade 59, would be an 
appropriate classification for this authorization.  Therefore, HR recommends a 

reclassification to Community Social Services Technician, grade 59 with a 3.5% salary 
increase from $26,263.95 to $27,183.19 ($919.24 increase).  Typically, HR would 
recommend a more conservative increase, but the grade is low enough that the 3.5% 

increase is conservative in and of itself.  Note – The Community Social Services Tech 
position already exists in payroll. 

 
b. Authorization #3 – No change to this authorization.  The duties and responsibilities of this 

authorization, transporting clients and assisting with household chores, are clearly a CSSA 

classification.   
 

c. Authorization #4 – This authorization’s duties and responsibilities are much more complex 
than those of authorization #3’s.  This Incumbent is responsible for observing and 
evaluating parent’s interaction and conduct with their child(ren).  The Incumbent is 

required to make recommendations and decisions on the spot with total independence.  In 
discussion with Dominick D’Erasmo, HR Consultant with the Office of State Personnel, it 

was determined that the Community Social Services Technician, grade 59, would be an 
appropriate classification for this authorization.  Therefore, HR recommends a 
reclassification to Community Social Services Technician, grade 59 with a salary increase 

to the minimum of the new pay grade (from $22,025.12 to $25,556.75) a $3,531.63 
increase in accordance with the Personnel Resolution.  Note – The Community Social 

Services Tech position already exists in payroll.   
 

d. Authorization #5 – This authorization’s duties and responsibilities are much more complex 

than those of authorization #3’s.  This Incumbent is responsible for observing and 
evaluating parent’s interaction and conduct with their child(ren).  The Incumbent is 

required to make recommendations and decisions on the spot with total independence.  In 
discussion with Dominick D’Erasmo, HR Consultant with the Office of State Personnel, it 
was determined that the Community Social Services Technician, grade 59, would be an 

appropriate classification for this authorization.  Therefore, HR recommends a 
reclassification to Community Social Services Technician, grade 59 with a salary increase 



to the minimum of the new pay grade (from $20,976.38 to $25,556.75) a $4,580.37 
increase in accordance with the Personnel Resolution.  Note – The Community Social 

Services Tech position already exists in payroll. 
 

17. Community Social Service Assistant, temp, grade 55, $20,976.37 to $31,464.00 – Close position.  
This position has been vacant since 1998. 

 

18. Day Care Coordinator, grade 67, $37,733.61 to $56,599.87 – Although this position has been 
vacant since 2005, Mr. Moorefield would like to keep it available should there be a future need.  

 
 

Social Work – Facts Grant positions 

 
 

1. Social Work Supervisor II, grade 69, $41,590.37 to $62,386.68 – Position #4016, Authorization #1 
and 2 only.  Close authorizations.  Vacant since 2001 and 2002. 

 

2. Social Worker II, grade 66, $35,925.09 to $53,887.65 – Position #4012, Authorization #1.  Close 
authorization.  Vacant since 2002.  



(Social Services Department) 

Child Support Division 

 
 
This DSS Job Study was completed prior to the 1.5% COLA approved by the BOCC for fiscal year 2013/2014.  

Therefore, the numbers reflected below are prior to the 1.5% COLA. 

 

 
1. Child Support Supervisor II, grade 67, $37,733.61 to $56,599.87 – The two authorizations for this 

position are classified appropriately; therefore, HR does not recommend a change to the title or 
grade for this position.  Survey data showed that the surveyed minimum salary for comparable 
Counties is $39,484; Davidson County’s minimum salary is $37,734.  In looking at the surveyed 

actual salary for comparable Counties, Davidson County’s average actual salary is about $9,500 
below comparable Counties.  HR recommends a conservative 2.5% salary increase for the two 

Child Support Supervisor II’s ((Auth #1 $943.34 salary increase from $37,733.61 to $38,676.95) 
and (Auth #2 $961.89 salary increase from $38,475.63 to $39,437.52).    

 

2. Quality Assurance Specialist I, grade 67, $37,733.61 to $56,599.87 – This position is one in which 
the Office of State Personnel has no specific Class Spec.  Even though it is impossible to classify a 

position appropriately, under the governance of the Office of State Personnel (OSP), when there is 
no matching OSP Class Spec, title or classification, Quality Assurance Specialist I is the most 
appropriate title for this position.   

 
The survey data that came in on this position shows that Davidson County’s grade is on target 
with the minimum salary surveyed, for comparable and competitive Counties ($38,746).  

Davidson County’s actual salary ($37,733.70), however, is considerably lower than the average 
actual salary for comparable and competitive Counties ($47,182).  Relying on survey data, HR 

recommends a 3% salary increase ($1,132.01) from $37,733.70 to $38,865.71.  This increase in 
salary will slightly lessen the gap between Davidson County’s actual salary and the 
comparable/competitive Counties average actual salary.   

 
3. Lead Child Support Agent, grade 65, $34,236.98 to $51,355.49 – Due to the caseload for this 

division within DSS, Mr. Moorefield would like to maintain this position.      
 

4. Child Support Agent II, grade 64, $32,611.91 to $49,004.52:  Survey data, gathered for this 

position, indicates that Davidson County’s Child Support Agent II position is appropriately graded 
at 64 and average actual salary is also appropriate.  The difference between Davidson County’s 

average actual salary and comparable County actual average salary is only approximately $2,500.    
 

a. Authorization #1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11 and 12 – No change to these authorizations. 

 
5. Child Support Agent II, temp, grade 64, $32,611.91 to $49,004.52 – This position has been vacant 

since 2004; therefore, HR recommends closure of this position.     
 

6. Child Support Agent I, grade 62, $29,656.60 to $44,484.91 – Survey data gathered for this position 

was minimal.  In comparison to the other Child Support positions, this Child Support Agent I 
position is appropriately graded at 62 because we are required to maintain the grade relationship 

with the Office of State Personnel.  Davidson County’s Child Support positions are 1 grade below 
the State grade.     



 
7. Office Support IV, grade 59, $25,556.75 to $38,335.70: 

 
a. Auth #1 and 8 – The position description for these authorizations reads more like a Child  

Support Agent I.  The following duties and responsibilities are indicative      
of a CSA I:  Intake, Voluntary Support Agreements and Paternity   
Establishment (no court involvement unless to serve as a witness).   

These two authorizations, at one time, were classified as  
CSA I, but were downgraded to OS IV.  This position is performing the  

duties and responsibilities of a CSA I; therefore, HR recommends a  
reclassification to Child Support Agent I, grade 62 with a salary increase  
to the minimum of the new pay grade (from $25,556.75 to $29,656.60) a  

$4,099.85 salary increase for each of the two Incumbents.  This salary 
increase to the minimum of the pay grade is in accordance with the 

Personnel Resolution. 
 



(Social Services Department) 

Income Maintenance Division 

 
 
This DSS Job Study was completed prior to the 1.5% COLA approved by the BOCC for fiscal year 2013/2014.  

Therefore, the numbers reflected below are prior to the 1.5% COLA. 

 

 
1. Income Maintenance Program Administrator I, grade 71, $45,810.62 to $68,714.82 – No change 

to the position title or grade.  The surveyed actual salary for comparable Counties, for this 
position, is $57,369.  Davidson County’s IM Program Administrator I Incumbent’s current salary 
is $48,473.57.  HR recommends a conservative $1,211.84 salary increase (2.5%) from 48,473.57 

to $49,685.41.  This certainly doesn’t close the gap between Davidson County’s salary and the 
comparable actual average salary, but it will help lessen the gap.      

 
2. Income Maintenance Supervisor II, grade 66, $35,925.09 to $53,887.65: 

 

a. Although authorization #1 has been vacant since 2003, Mr. Moorefield would like to have 
this authorization available should the need arise in the future due to possible impact from 

the NC Fast program currently being implemented.  
 
b. No change to the following authorizations:  3, 4, 5, 6 and 7.  The average salary for 

Davidson County’s IM Supervisor II position is $40,958.  The average actual comparable 
Counties salary is $42,105.  HR does not recommend a change in salary.  

 

3. Income Maintenance Caseworker III, grade 64, $32,611.91 to $49,004.52:  The average actual 
salary for Davidson County’s IMC III position is $34,553.  The average actual salary for 

comparable Counties is $37,275, a $2,722 difference.  HR does not recommend a change in salary.   
 

a. No change to the following authorizations:  1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10 and 11. 

 
4. Income Maintenance Caseworker III, temp, grade 64, $32,611.91 to $49,004.52 – This position 

has been vacant since 2004; therefore, HR recommends closure of this position. 
 

5. Income Maintenance Investigator II, grade 64, $32,611.91 to $49,004.52 – No change to this 

position. 
 

6. Income Maintenance Caseworker II, grade 62, $29,656.60 to $44,484.91:  Davidson County’s 
average actual ($34,794) and minimum ($29,657) salaries for this position are right in line with 
comparable Counties (average actual $31,709 and average minimum $29,660).  HR does not 

recommend a change in salary. 
 

a. No change to the following authorizations:  2, 3, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 
19, 20, 21, 23, 24, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 31, 32, 33, 35, 36, 38, 40, 42, 43, 44, 45, 47, 48, 49, 
50, 51.  

b. Although authorization #25 has been vacant since 2008, Mr. Moorefield would like to keep 
this authorization should there be a need for it in the future due to possible impact from the 

NC Fast program currently being implemented.     
 



 
7. Income Maintenance Caseworker II, temp, grade 62, $29,656.60 to $44,484.91: 

 
a. Close the following authorizations, since they’ve been vacant at least 5 years:  1 and 4. 

   
b. No change to the following authorizations:  2, 3, 5 and 6. 

 

8. Income Maintenance Caseworker I, temp, grade 60, $26,883.60 to $40,325.41 – Close position.  
This position has been vacant for at least 7 years. 

 
9. Income Maintenance Caseworker I w/a IMC II, grade 60, $26,883.60 to $40,325.41 –  

 

a. No change to this position.  Based on survey data and position analysis, the grade and 
salary for this position is appropriate.  

 
10. Income Maintenance Caseworker I w/a IMC II, temp, grade 60, $26,883.60 to $40,325.41 – Close 

this position since it’s been vacant since 2006. 

 
11. Income Maintenance Technician, temp, grade 58, $24,351.45 to $36,527.18 – Although this 

position has been vacant since 2002, Mr. Moorefield would like to maintain this authorization 
should there be a future need due to the new NC Fast program currently being implemented.  

 



(Social Services Department) 

Positions/Authorizations to close, Dept 23 

 
 

 
 
 

1. Various – The following positions have not been filled in some time (see Allocation Chart).  HR 
recommends closing these positions: 

 
a. Accounting Tech II (grade 63) – Close position. 
b. Human Resources Placement Specialist (grade 62) – Close position. 

c. Office Support IV, Temp (grade 59) – Authorization #1. 
d. Office Support III, Temp (grade 57) – Authorization #5, 6 and 7. 

e. Office Support II, Temp (grade 54) – Authorization #1, 2 and 3. 
f. Chore Provider, Temp (grade 51) – Close position. 
g. SW Supervisor III, Temp (grade 72) – Close position. 

h. Interim SW Supervisor III (grade 72) – Close authorization #3. 
i. SW I/A & T (grade 69) – Close authorization #2. 

j. SW III (grade 68) – Authorization #29, 30, 32, 42 and 44. 
k. SW III – Temp (grade 68) – Authorization #2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8 and 9. 
l. SW II (grade 66) – Authorization #14 and 15. 

m. SW II, Temp (grade 66) – Authorization #1 and 2. 
n. SW II, Temp, Foster Care (grade 66) – Pos #34003, Authorization #1 and 2. 

o. SW I, Temp (grade 62) – Close position. 
p. SW Trainee, Temp (grade 61) – Close position. 
q. Community Employment Case Manager (grade 64) – Authorization #3. 

r. Community Social Services Assistant, Temp (grade 55) – Close position. 
s. SW Supervisor II (grade 69) – Pos #4016, Div 2, Authorization #1 and 2. 

t. SW II (grade 66) – Pos #4012, Div 2, Authorization #1. 
u. Lead Child Support (grade 65) – Authorization #2. 
v. Child Support Agent II, Temp (grade 64) – Close position. 

w. IM Caseworker III, Temp (grade 64) – Close position. 
x. IM Caseworker II, Temp (grade 62) – Authorization #1 and 4. 

y. IM Caseworker I, Temp (grade 60) – Close position. 
z. IMC I w/a IMC II, Temp (grade 60) – Close position. 

 



 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
Cooperative Extension 
 

End of year budget appropriation for 4-H account 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

End of Year Budget Appropriation for 4-H Account presented for Board approval. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approval by the Board of Commissioners 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

End of year budget appropriation for 4-H Account 2012-2013 - Revenue account $3,573.00, 
Expenditure account $3,573.00. 
 



Appropriated Fund Request Form

End of Year Budget Appropriation

Date

Explanation:

Zeb M. Hanner

Budget Officer

3,573.00$                

3,573.00$                

4-H General Fund Revenue

4-H General Fund Expenditure

Source of Revenue: General Fund

110-4905-385-35.10

110-4905-462-84.10

Budget Amendment No. ________________________

Authorization is hereby requested to amend the 2012-2013 budget ordinance for Davidson County in the 

following manner:

Fund or Department:  Cooperative Extension General Fund:  Appropriated

Increase/decrease appropriation budget in the amount of: $______________

Line Item Number Description Amount

Increase estimated revenue in the amount of: $_________________

Decrease estimated revenue in the amount of: $ ________________



 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
County Manager 
 

Budget Amendments by Assistant County Manager 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

Budget Amendments by Assistant County Manager 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Please approve Budget Amendments 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Roll forward budgeted amount from 2012-2013 to 2013-2014 Budget to construct Landfill 
Phase II Area 2.  This project was budgeted for 2012-2013 but was delayed by the 
privatization process.   
2. Davidison County Schools request to move the remainder of the original QSCB funds  
($153,479.06) to Oak Grove Middle School project.  The other funds are line item transfers 
among local projects.  No additional County Dollars are requested. 
3. Lexington City Schools would like to allocate Category I Funds approved in the  2013-
2014 Budget to various projects.  No additional County dollars  are requested.  
4. Appropriate funds of $2,560.21 received from the State for the spay/neuter program.  
Funds pass through to the Humane Society. 

















Spay/Neuter Reimbursements
by year and quarte

2013

CountyCity quarter Amt Requested # of proceduresAmt reimbursed

2 $6,304.81 76BLADEN $2,834.74

2 $15,460.69 88BRUNSWICK $1,956.32

2 $2,700.00 54CABARRUS $2,700.00

2 $2,900.00 29CARTERET $209.48

2 $3,720.00 55CASWELL $2,862.64

2 $3,645.00 43CHATHAM $663.12

2 $10,571.00 124CUMBERLAND $6,222.38

2 $3,381.00 40DARE $341.71

2 $4,428.00 56DAVIDSON $2,560.21

2 $2,104.00 41DAVIE $756.52

2 $4,935.00 76DURHAM $3,277.18

2 $458.00 3EDGECOMBE (TO $458.00

2 $530.00 5GRANVILLE $110.18

2 $22,735.00 337GUILFORD $1,435.28

2 $10,970.00 251HAYWOOD $1,106.31

2 $3,090.00 66HENDERSON $1,486.85

2 $3,428.00 114IREDELL $2,830.78

Tuesday, September 03, 2013 Page 1 of 2

Spay/Neuter Program

Veterinary Division

NC Dept of Agriculture and Consumer Services

Steve Troxler, Commissioner



CountyCity quarter Amt Requested # of proceduresAmt reimbursed

2 $3,815.00 42MARTIN $3,815.00

2 $12,008.39 90MCDOWELL $6,099.90

2 $956.25 9MONTGOMERY $956.25

2 $2,490.00 40MOORE $1,494.54

2 $6,285.00 68ORANGE $1,642.79

2 $4,022.96 44PASQUOTANK $527.05

2 $2,030.00 29PERSON $275.54

2 $3,544.82 71RANDOLPH $1,242.57

2 $27,685.00 336ROBESON $12,335.27

2 $14,230.00 278ROCKINGHAM $1,972.63

2 $7,286.60 85SCOTLAND $7,286.60

2 $1,171.11 7SWAIN $1,171.11

2 $11,390.00 154WAKE $8,532.33

2 $420.00 14WATAUGA $420.00

$198,695.63 2,725$79,583.28

Tuesday, September 03, 2013 Page 2 of 2

Spay/Neuter Program

Veterinary Division

NC Dept of Agriculture and Consumer Services

Steve Troxler, Commissioner



 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
Transportation 
 

Request to Schedule Public Hearing for ROAP Grant Application 
by Steve Swaim, Transportation Manager 
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

The Davidson County Transportation Department is requesting that a Public Hearing 
be scheduled for Tuesday, September 24, 2013, at 7:00 p.m. in the Commissioners’ 

Meeting Room for the 2013-2014 ROAP Grant Application.                                                                                           
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Schedule public hearing for ROAP Grant Application for September 24, 2013 at 7:00 
p.m. in the Commissioners’ Meeting Room. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 

ROAP Grant Application and Information 
 





























 

 
DAVIDSON COUNTY 

AGENDA ITEM  
 
 

TO: 
 

DEPARTMENT 
PREPARED BY: 

 

TITLE: 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
County Commissioners 
 

Resolution of Support for Joint Development of Phase One of I-85 
Industrial Park  
 

 
 
BACKGROUND: 

Attached for your review and consideration is a Resolution of Support for Joint 
Development of Phase One of I-85 Industrial Park. 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S): 

Approve Resolution. 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS: 
Resolution of Support for Joint Development of Phase One of I-85 Industrial Park 
 



STATE OF NORTH CAROLINA )       

COUNTY OF DAVIDSON   ) 
  
 

RESOLUTION OF SUPPORT FOR JOINT DEVELOPMENT  
OF PHASE ONE OF I-85 INDUSTRIAL PARK  

 
     

WHEREAS, North Carolina General Statute §158-7.1 authorizes a county to undertake  economic 
development activities, including the acquisition of land and developing of an industrial park, to be used 
for manufacturing, assembly, fabrication, processing, warehousing, research and development, office use , 
or similar industrial or commercial purposes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Davidson County Board of Commissioners has adopted a policy of supporting 

industrial or commercial development and expansion within the county in order to provide for the 
financial welfare of its citizens; and   

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners on May 14, 2013 indicated its intent “to proceed with 

Phase 1 of the I-85 Industrial Park with further details to be forthcoming…;” and 
 
WHEREAS, Davidson County, the Davidson County Economic Commission, certain private land 

owners and other potential partners have conferred about reaching an agreement in principal to contribute 
their respective resources and to create a joint undertaking for the development of such an industrial park 
in Davidson County; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the form of such joint undertaking is currently being developed by said parties and 
the relative rights and responsibilities of each of the partners will be presented to the parties for review 
and revision before consideration for adoption; and     
 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Commissioners, in order to encourage the continued progress of the 
parties noted above and the enlistment of other participants to join in this undertaking, seeks by this 
resolution to publicly assert its support for the promotion of Phase 1 of the I-85 Industrial Park, subject to 
development of the appropriate legal framework addressing the respective interests of the parties, a public 
hearing on any required expenditure of public funds and subsequent board approval of any appropriation 
of monies for such project.    
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Davidson County Board of Commissioners 
approves in principal efforts to jointly develop Phase 1 of the I-85 Industrial Park and encourages the 
drafting of an instrument defining the respective roles of the participants in a joint undertaking for the 
creation of said industrial park.  

 
This the 10

th
 day of September, 2013. 

 
 
 
     ___________________________________________   
     Fred McClure, Chairman 
     Davidson County Board of Commissioners  

Attest: 
 
__________________________________ 
Deborah J. Harris 

Deputy Clerk to the Board 


	Table of Contents
	 Item 1.a Agenda Summary
	Agenda Summary 196_2013
	Agenda Summary 196_2013_Attachment.1

	 Item 8.a Public Hearing - Project Soft
	Public Hearing - Project Soft 197_2013
	Public Hearing - Project Soft 197_2013_Attachment.1
	Public Hearing - Project Soft 197_2013_Attachment.2
	Public Hearing - Project Soft 197_2013_Attachment.3

	 Item 9.a Approval of Minutes
	Approval of Minutes 198_2013
	Approval of Minutes 198_2013_Attachment.1

	 Item 9.b Reclassify Position
	Reclassify Position 174_2013
	Reclassify Position 174_2013_Attachment.1
	Reclassify Position 174_2013_Attachment.2

	 Item 9.c School Resource Officer Contract - 2013-2014 with 
	School Resource Officer Contract - 2013-2014 with  191_2013
	School Resource Officer Contract - 2013-2014 with  191_2013_Attachment.1

	 Item 9.d The Tax Report of Refunds
	The Tax Report of Refunds 193_2013
	The Tax Report of Refunds 193_2013_Attachment.1

	 Item 9.e FY 13-14 Proposed JCPC Membership
	FY 13-14 Proposed JCPC Membership 194_2013
	FY 13-14 Proposed JCPC Membership 194_2013_Attachment.1
	FY 13-14 Proposed JCPC Membership 194_2013_Attachment.2

	 Item 9.f Department of Social Services Job Study
	Department of Social Services Job Study 190_2013
	Department of Social Services Job Study 190_2013_Attachment.1
	Department of Social Services Job Study 190_2013_Attachment.2
	Department of Social Services Job Study 190_2013_Attachment.3
	Department of Social Services Job Study 190_2013_Attachment.4
	Department of Social Services Job Study 190_2013_Attachment.5
	Department of Social Services Job Study 190_2013_Attachment.6
	Department of Social Services Job Study 190_2013_Attachment.7

	 Item 9.g.1 Budget Amendment - Cooperative Extension
	Budget Amendment - Cooperative Extension 187_2013
	Budget Amendment - Cooperative Extension 187_2013_Attachment.1

	 Item 9.g.2 Budget Amendments by Assistant County Manager
	Budget Amendments by Assistant County Manager 195_2013
	Budget Amendments by Assistant County Manager 195_2013_Attachment.1
	Budget Amendments by Assistant County Manager 195_2013_Attachment.2
	Budget Amendments by Assistant County Manager 195_2013_Attachment.3
	Budget Amendments by Assistant County Manager 195_2013_Attachment.4

	 Item 10.a Request to Schedule Public Hearing - ROAP Grant Ap
	Request to Schedule Public Hearing - ROAP Grant Ap 177_2013
	Request to Schedule Public Hearing - ROAP Grant Ap 177_2013_Attachment.1

	 Item 10.b Resolution of Support for Industrial Park
	Resolution of Support for Industrial Park 167_2013
	Resolution of Support for Industrial Park 167_2013_Attachment.1



